
Bill Cullen MBA (ISM), BA(Hons) MRTPI
Chief Executive

Hinckley Hub • Rugby Road • Hinckley • Leicestershire • LE10 0FR
Telephone 01455 238141 • MDX No 716429 • Fax 01455 251172 • www.hinckley-bosworth.gov.uk

Date: 21 November 2017

To: Members of the Ethical Governance and 
Personnel Committee

Mrs R Camamile (Chairman)
Mr RG Allen
Mr CW Boothby
Mr MB Cartwright
Mr WJ Crooks

Mr MR Lay
Mr M Nickerson
Mr LJP O'Shea
Ms BM Witherford

Copy to all other Members of the Council

(other recipients for information)

Dear member,

There will be a meeting of the ETHICAL GOVERNANCE AND PERSONNEL COMMITTEE in 
the De Montfort Suite - Hub on WEDNESDAY, 29 NOVEMBER 2017 at 6.30 pm and your 
attendance is required.

The agenda for the meeting is set out overleaf.

Yours sincerely

Rebecca Owen
Democratic Services Officer

Public Document Pack

http://intranet/branding/Printlogo/B%20and%20W%20HBBC%20logo%202017.jpg


Hinckley Hub • Rugby Road • Hinckley • Leicestershire • LE10 0FR
Telephone 01455 238141 • MDX No 716429 • Fax 01455 251172 • www.hinckley-bosworth.gov.uk

ETHICAL GOVERNANCE AND PERSONNEL COMMITTEE -  29 NOVEMBER 2017

A G E N D A

1.  APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTIONS 

2.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4)

To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting.

3.  ADDITIONAL URGENT BUSINESS BY REASON OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES 

To be advised of any additional items of business which the Chairman decides by 
reason of special circumstances shall be taken as matters of urgency at this meeting.

4.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive verbally from members any disclosures which they are required to make in 
accordance with the Council’s code of conduct or in pursuance of Section 106 of the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992. This is in addition to the need for such 
disclosure to be also given when the relevant matter is reached on the agenda.

5.  QUESTIONS 

To hear any questions received in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 12.

6.  STATUTORY SAFETY COMMITTEE MINUTES (Pages 5 - 6)

Minutes of the meeting held on 30 October 2017.

7.  COMPLAINTS UPDATE 

The only outstanding item is on this agenda for consideration.

8.  ANY OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES HAVE TO BE 
DEALT WITH AS MATTERS OF URGENCY 

9.  MATTERS FROM WHICH THE PUBLIC MAY BE EXCLUDED 

To consider the passing of a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 excluding the public from the undermentioned item of business on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 1 and 10 of Schedule 12A of the 1972 Act.

10.  COMPLAINT 2017-06 (Pages 7 - 50)

Report of the investigator attached, along with appendices.



-37 -

HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL

ETHICAL GOVERNANCE AND PERSONNEL COMMITTEE

16 AUGUST 2017 AT 6.30 PM

PRESENT: Mrs R Camamile - Chairman

Mr RG Allen, Mrs MA Cook (for Mr CW Boothby), Mr WJ Crooks, Mr E Hollick (for Mr MB 
Cartwright), Mr M Nickerson, Mr LJP O'Shea and Ms BM Witherford

Also in attendance: Councillor M Hall (for the public session items); Mr G Grimes 
(Independent Person).

Officers in attendance: Julie Kenny and Rebecca Owen

102 APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTIONS 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Boothby and Cartwright, 
with the substitution of Councillor Cook for Councillor Boothby and Councillor Hollick for 
Councillor Cartwright authorised in accordance with council procedure rule 10.

103 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

It was moved by Councillor O’Shea, seconded by Councillor Nickerson and

RESOLVED – the minutes of the meeting held on 30 March 2017 be 
confirmed and signed by the chairman.

104 ADDITIONAL URGENT BUSINESS BY REASON OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES 

Whilst not considered urgent business, attention was drawn to the request made at a 
previous meeting that a progress report on current complaints be brought to each 
meeting. Whilst it was acknowledged that this had not been included as the only ongoing 
complaints were those included in the agenda for this meeting, a member had made a 
request to the chairman that a statement of ‘no updates’ be included on the agenda if 
this was the case. The request was noted.

105 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor O’Shea declared a personal interest which might lead to bias in agenda item 
14 (complaint 2017-06) and stated he would leave the meeting during consideration of 
this item.

106 DOMESTIC ABUSE WORKPLACE POLICY 

The committee gave consideration to the refreshed Domestic Abuse Workplace Policy 
for the authority. It was reported that staff and unions had been consulted in preparation 
of the policy. A member highlighted that there was no mention of modern slavery and it 
was stated that the definitions mirrored the Home Office definition but agreed that this 
would be fed back to the author. A member thanked officers for their hard work in this 
area. It was moved by Councillor Allen, seconded by Councillor O’Shea and

RESOLVED – the Domestic Abuse Workplace Policy be approved.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



-38 -

107 PEOPLE STRATEGY 2017-2021 

The People Strategy 2017-2021, which set out the strategic priorities for the workforce 
for the next four years, was presented to members.

A member suggested that there should be five themes listed in paragraph 3.3 of the 
report – the fifth being retention of staff.

Some discussion ensued on diversity and the risk of discriminating against applicants 
who did not have a disability when guaranteeing an interview if a disabled applicant 
meets the essential criteria for the role. Officers felt that this was a reasonable measure 
and emphasised that it only applied to the essential criteria, not desirable criteria.

A member drew attention to page 21 which referred to 40% of the annual leavers leaving 
due to resignation and queried the reasons for the other 60%. It was agreed that this 
would be clarified.

It was moved by Councillor Nickerson, seconded by Councillor Allen and

RESOLVED – the report be RECOMMENDED to Council for approval.

108 CORPORATE COMPLAINTS 2016-17 

Members received an annual update on corporate complaints received under the 
council’s two-stage process.

During discussion, the following points were raised:

 A member asked how the number of complaints not upheld compared with 
previous years, given the overall increase in the number of complaints. It was 
agreed that this information would be provided

 The high number of complaints in relation to housing repairs was discussed, and 
the reasons for these, which had now been resolved.

It was moved by Councillor O’Shea, seconded by Councillor Camamile and

RESOLVED – the report be noted.

109 STATUTORY SAFETY COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Members received the Statutory Safety Committee minutes of 30 March 2017 for 
information.

A member asked whether there had been an increase in accidents and it was noted that 
this would be addressed in the minutes which would come to the next meeting.

Discussion ensued on excess waste and the health and safety reasons for this not being 
collected.

Councillor Hall left the meeting at 7pm.

110 MATTERS FROM WHICH THE PUBLIC MAY BE EXCLUDED 

On the motion of Councillor Camamile seconded by Councillor O’Shea, it was

RESOLVED – in accordance with section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the following item of 

Page 2



-39 -

business on the grounds that it involves the disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 1 and 10 of Part I of Schedule 12A 
of that Act.

111 COMPLAINT 2017-03 

Consideration was given to a complaint about Councillor Granger, Barwell Parish 
Council. It had been alleged that Councillor Granger had been verbally abusive towards 
a member of the public (the complainant) during a telephone conversation. It was noted 
that informal resolution had been explored but had not been possible to achieve.

Members felt that an investigation would not provide any additional information as it 
would be the complainant’s word against the subject member’s. It was, therefore, felt that 
Councillor Granger should be requested to send a written apology to the complainant. It 
was also requested that Councillor Granger be reminded to be mindful of his tone and 
the way he spoke to people in future.

It was moved by Councillor O’Shea, seconded by Councillor Crooks and

RESOLVED – 

(i) Councillor Granger be requested to send a written apology to the 
complainant;

(ii) Councillor Granger be reminded to be mindful of the way he 
speaks to others;

(iii) The report and decision be made public.

112 COMPLAINT 2017-04 

The committee gave consideration to a complaint against Councillor Granger of Barwell 
Parish Council. It was alleged that Councillor Granger had been rude to a member of the 
public (the complainant) during a telephone conversation. It was noted that informal 
resolution had been explored but had not been achieved.

Members expressed concern about the number of calls Councillor Granger allegedly 
made to the complainant on the day of the aforementioned conversation. Concern was 
also expressed about individual parish councillors dealing with complaints and land use 
issues.

It was felt that an investigation would not provide any additional information as it would 
be the complainant’s word against the subject member’s. It was, therefore, felt that 
Councillor Granger should be requested to send a written apology to the complainant. It 
was also suggested that, given two similar complaints against Councillor Granger had 
been addressed at this meeting, the subject member be reminded of the Nolan 
Principles and that the parish council be requested to consider arranging training for him 
on dealing with people appropriately.

It was moved by Councillor O’Shea, seconded by Councillor Camamile and

RESOLVED – 

(i) Councillor Granger be requested to send a written apology to the 
complainant;

(ii) Councillor Granger be reminded of the Nolan Principles;

Page 3



-40 -

(iii) Barwell Parish Council be requested to consider providing training 
for Councillor Granger on dealing with people appropriately;

(iv) The report and decision be made public.

113 COMPLAINT 2017-06 

Having declared a personal interest which might lead to bias in this item, Councillor 
O’Shea left the meeting at 7.45pm.

Consideration was given to a fact finding report. The committee felt that the matter did 
fall under the code of conduct, may have been a breach of the code of conduct, and was 
of sufficient seriousness to be investigated. It was also felt that an independent external 
investigator should be appointed.

It was moved by Councillor Nickerson, seconded by Councillor Witherford and

RESOLVED – 

(i) Complaint 2017-06 be referred for investigation;

(ii) An external investigator be sought.

(The Meeting closed at 8.04 pm)

CHAIRMAN

Page 4



Statutory Safety Committee Minutes
30 October 2017 (5)

Attending: Adrian Wykes (AWy), Marc Lee (MLe), Ged Hickey (GHi), Ken Hudson (KHu),
     Rob Smart (RSm), Lisa Kirby (LKi), Daniel Brookes (DBr)

Item Minute Action
1. APOLOGIES – Robert Vaughan, Sarah Marriner, Darren Moore, 

                          Tony Cunnington, Jo Baggott. 
             

2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING – Accepted.

3.

A

B

MATTERS ARISING – from last minutes:

 The Committee discussed the use of the Potentially 
Violent/Threatening or Abusive Customers List. AWy was tasked 
with asking the Data Manager to give a brief presentation on 
‘how the data is accessed’.

 Agreed a newsletter and email to be sent out informing staff why 
we collect accident and incident data.

AWy

AWy

4.

A

B

C

DISCUSSION:
 

 The Committee examined the accidents, incidents, stress and 
insurance figures. They agreed that accidents etc. were being 
managed in the Authority. Re-emphasis on continuing to request 
staff to report accidents and incidents would be continued. 

          The Committee asked that Finance present more information on    
          vehicle accidents to allow the Committee to have a fuller picture   
          of vehicle type, service area etc. AWy to discuss with Finance.

 A presentation was given on the recent significant findings of the 
HUB inspection. The main area of concern was house-keeping.

 A presentation was given on recent significant findings of the 
Atkins inspection. The main areas of concern were fire doors and 
house-keeping. MLe has arranged for most findings to be 
actioned. The remaining findings are being prioritised and 
actioned.

All

AWy

MLe

5.

A

AOB:

 The Committee discussed completing a scoping exercise to 
ascertain what tasks can be completed internally that at present 
are externally provided via sub-contractors. 

All

Page 5

Agenda Item 6

http://intranet/branding/Printlogo/Landscape%20logo%202017.jpg


SSC Minutes 2

B

C

D

E

F

 The accident and vehicle reporting forms are to be brought to 
the next meeting and the Committee will examine and suggest 
changes to make them easier to fill in and use.

 To provide a presentation to update the Committee on 
Asbestos framework and management.

 To provide a presentation to update the committee on 
legionella framework and management.

 The Committee agreed and asked that Customer Services 
be representative on the Committee. AWy will contact 
Laura Blain. 

 It was agreed by the trade union representatives that the 
accident statistics do not need to go to the joint 
management and union meetings.

AWy

AWy

AWy

AWy

6. NEXT MEETING:

January 2017.

Page 6



Document is Restricted

Page 7

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 17

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 25

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 27

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 31

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 33

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 35

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 37

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 39

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 41

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 10 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of previous meeting
	6 Statutory Safety Committee minutes
	10 Complaint 2017-06
	Appendix 1 code of conduct
	Appendix 2 statement of complainant
	Appendix 3 statement of subject member
	Appendix 4 Stage 1 Report
	Appendix 5 plan img-Y21101702-0001
	Appendix 6a IMG_4697
	Appendix 6b IMG_4698 (2)
	Appendix 6c IMG_4702
	Appendix 6d IMG_4704
	Appendix 7 the-blue-badge-schem


